MINUTES

FORT MYERS BEACH

Local Planning Agency Meeting

Town Hall – Council Chambers

2523 Estero Boulevard

Fort Myers Beach, FL 33931

Tuesday, February 24, 2009

I. CALL TO ORDER

Meeting was called to order at 10:31 AM by Chairperson Dennis Weimer.  Members present:



Evie Barnes



Rochelle Kay



Alan Mandel



Bill Van Duzer



Joanne Shamp



Member Joe Yerkes was absent, with excuse

Staff present:  LPA Attorney Ann Dalton, Dr. Frank Shockey.  Members of the community were also present.

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. INVOCATION-Mr. Weimer
IV. MINUTES

Minutes of February 10, 2009-

MOTION:  Ms. Shamp moved to approve the minutes; seconded by Ms. Kay; 

VOTE:  Motion carried 6-0.
V. TOWN CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) ITEMS 
Ms. Shamp reported on her meeting earlier with Town manager Janke, Jack Green, Dr. Shockey and Theresa Schober regarding the CIP Fiscal year 2008-2013, and presented a copy of the report to LPA as adopted by the Council for the current budget year.  Ms. Shamp noted 6 comments for review, as indicated on her report.  These included Transportation Capital Improvements, which will be $500,000.00 more than projected; Trolley Stop Improvements, the County may provide funding for 1-3 years; Conversion of the Newton Property; Mound House Improvements, $1.27 million is grant money; Neighborhood Landscaping, stated amounts and guidelines, and other items (see report).

In addition, Ms. Shamp stated that current issues that the LPA might be able to address in this economy would be the concept of funding sources for Capital Improvements, such as charter amendments for debt, since there is currently no plan for the Town to create those sources in the CIP.  She also suggested implementing of storm water projects, as FEMA may fund about 75% of the cost.  Another item would include 5-10 year “wish list” items, as suggested by staff.  Ms. Schober had suggested checking into retaining the Town’s share of “20-20” funds that it currently pays to the county for conservation land, since there is no land on Estero Island for this purpose.  Jack Green added side-street resurfacing to the items.  Ms. Shamp recommended that she and Dr. Shockey continue to schedule CIP presentations on the LPA agenda on a monthly basis by appropriate staff.  

Ms. Shamp asked Mr. Janke to join her and answer questions, etc.  Mr. Mandel referred to the Conservation “20-20” funds and asked for an explanation of how that works.  Mr. Janke explained the process. Mr. Janke also explained that the charter does not allow the Town to go into debt so a major project would require serious payment planning.  Ms. Kay asked for clarification of the first comment on Ms. Shamp’s report and Mr. Janke explained.  Ms. Shamp asked for Mr. Janke’s personal opinion as to the prioritizing of the projects.  He opined that the LPA should look to review the Comp Plan to see if any projects are linked to that plan.  Ms. Shamp asked if there would be any merit in having a presentation on storm water relating to funding, etc.  Mr. Janke agreed that it may be a good idea to have a presentation to give the LPA a better grasp of these two huge issues.  Mr. Weimer referred to the current issue CIP that LPA could address, specifically #1: funding sources, and the fact that the charter does not allow debt.  Ms. Dalton clarified that it may, however, be accomplished by referendum.  Discussion ensued regarding tax millage for specific capital improvements.  

Mr. Weimer also commented on item #2, on the same page, Implementation of Storm Water Project.  He asked Mr. Janke what the LPA could help with on this issue.  He said that there is not much the LPA can do as a body, other than keep abreast of what the project accomplishes as it moves forward.  More general discussion ensued about a possible presentation regarding this issue.  Mr. Janke suggested that Cathie,  Town staff, present some information to the LPA, since she is well versed in the details.  Mr. Weimer asked about the level of service projected for these projects.  Mr. Janke pointed out that this pilot project will give a glimpse of that level.  Dr. Shockey expanded on the term “level of service” and how it applies to the improvements planned.  Ms. Shamp suggested that the proposed presentation should be a storm water presentation that would also include the CIP process and right-of-way.  

VI. PUBLIC HEARING 
A. Ordinance 09-01 Amending LDC Chapter 10-“Procedure for Vacating Town Interests in Real Property” 

Ms. Dalton read the ordinance caption for the record:
“An ordinance of the Town of Ft. Myers Beach FL amending the Town of Ft. Myers Beach Land Development Code providing authority, finding a necessity, purpose and intent, adopting amendments to Chapter 10 of the Land Development Code, which is titled “Development Orders and Engineering Standards.”  Establishing application requirements and legal procedures for vacating Town owned public interests in real property, severability; amending Provision 5, Plats and Vacations; amending subdivision 2, Vacation of Town Interest in Real Property; amending section 10-218 “Purpose and Intent;” amending sec 10-219, “Applications;” amending sec 10-220 “Procedure;” providing severability, effective ordinance and effective date.” 
Dr. Shockey gave an overview of the ordinance.  He explained that the state law provides for certain guidelines within which residents can ask local public governmental entities to vacate their interests in easements, rights-of-way, etc.  He said that in the past, county staff would prepare the petitions and bring them before the Town Council, before they went before the Board of County Commissioners; however, this is not the case any more and referred to the attorney’s memo, included in the LPA packets.  

Ms. Dalton noted that the LPA had asked how issues came before them so she included in their packets the “blue sheet” that went to the Town Council that requested that this matter be referred to the LPA.  She also pointed out the 3 page memo in the packet.  

Mr. Weimer asked for public comment. 

PUBLIC COMMENT

 Mr. Melsek addressed the LPA and cautioned the panel not to make it too easy to give away Town property because these easements, etc. are valuable to the Town.  He pointed out that there is a concern that many easements have been given away and the utilities and others who acquire the property are using it without compensation to the Town. 

Public comment closed.

Mr. Weimer asked for LPA input.  Mr. Van Duzer asked if any vacations done in the past, when the Town did not have specific laws to address it, were done illegally.  Ms. Dalton stated that it was legal if done according to FL statute.  Ms. Barnes noted her appreciation for the inclusion of the “blue sheet” in the packets.  She also stated that these issues will be looked at on a case-by case basis.  Mr. Mandel asked if fire and rescue should be contacted along with utility companies when vacating properties.  Ms. Dalton agreed that that could be included.  Ms. Shamp asked if there was a mechanism in place for this to go to the property appraiser for implementation.  Ms. Dalton answered that there was no automatic process to do that but that the property appraiser is normally left to do that job.  Mr. Weimer asked if the county holds the overriding right to vacate the property.  Ms. Dalton said that is true but the county couldn’t do this without some input from the Town.  Mr. Weimer also had a concern about chain of title to the vacated property.  Ms. Dalton stated that the county records its resolution, vacating the county’s interest; the Town’s resolution, vacating the Town’s interest, she assumed that the county would also record the Town’s resolution as part of the packet because it is a statutory requirement to have Town approval.  Mr. Weimer suggested that, prior to this going forward to Council, the question be answered regarding the deed requirement.  Mr. Weimer asked if Ms. Dalton is confident with the resolution, at this point, being comprehensive enough to legally address any possible legal issues.  She said that she is confident and that perhaps staff could also include a check list of items necessary to be addressed with the vacation. Mr. Weimer also asked if the resolution could be streamlined since it is very involved.  Dr. Shockey opined that just the fact that there is an ordinance will be helpful.  Mr. Mandel brought up the appraisal issues, suggesting that the Town not need to pay for any fees and possibly including language in the resolution to that effect.  Mr. Van Duzer suggested that the fire and sheriff’s departments be included in the approval process of the vacating.  Ms. Kay asked for some definitions and Ms. Dalton answered her questions.  

The general consensus was that EMS be notified along with the utilities when considering the vacation; there should be an appraisal included in the vacation process; Town’s resolution would be null and void if the County has not passed an accompanying resolution within a certain timeframe.  Much discussion ensued about the county vs the Town’s interests as well as hearing processes for vacating any Town interests in property.  Discussion also about additions, edits and deletions agreed upon by the members for inclusion in the resolution.  

Short recess to review the resolution edits.  
Reconvene with more discussion about edits (see copy of resolution for changes) and extensive discussion about appraisals and those requirements.  

Request for additional public comment;

 Mr. Melsek again addressed the LPA.  He said that states and counties often require two appraisals and he gave reasons why this is a good idea.  He also pointed out that it is fairer for there to be two appraisals since each side should have their own, with fair sharing of the costs.  He also asked the LPA to exempt beach access property and not give any of that away.  There was more extensive discussion of the same topic, being appraisals and the need for two, one paid by the Town.  Finally, the consensus was that there should be at least one appraisal, paid for by the applicant; but then members were split evenly about having two appraisals, one paid for by the Town.  

Recess for lunch at 1:00 PM

Reconvene at 1:50 PM

The LPA attorney was not able to change the ordinance verbiage because of a computer issue.   Mr. Weimer asked for a motion to continue the hearing to the next meeting when there would be a completed resolution and with the corrected wording.  

MOTION:  Ms. Barnes made the motion and was seconded by Mr. Mandel, to move the item to March 10, 2009 at 10:30 AM.  

VOTE: Motion was carried 6-0 and the hearing was closed at 1:55 PM for continuation at the next meeting.

VII. ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA
A. Report on Commercial ROW Use and Storm Water Plan (verbal)-Mr. Van Duzer

Mr. Van Duzer stated that Ms. Shamp drafted the report distributed to the members and he turned the presentation over to her.  Ms. Shamp stated that the survey of Estero Boulevard will not be done for about 18 months.  However, there are known issues of concern that have been identified: completion of the North Estero Blvd. survey, visual inspections of Estero Blvd. and side streets, etc.  Specific issues are:  1) is the definition of right-of-way in the LDC complete?  2) driveways, accesses and apron design, uses, issues relating to the right-of-way and storm water plan; 3) any structures or overhangs that cross the right-of-way;  4) any allowed uses or easements that may be later permitted in the right-of-way;  5) development standards for future development that may relate to right-of-way, especially Time Square;  6) enforcement and penalties related to the right-of-way.  Ms. Shamp suggested that the LPA schedule presentations by staff on some of these items so that funding and planning may be started.  She referred to her report (members had copies) for discussion of these items.  She also suggested that the LPA perhaps begin with defining the right-of-way in the LDC and addressing the driveways, accesses and aprons.  Mr. Van Duzer added that review of driveway sizes and the impervious surface issues were items that seemed most immediately important.  Discussion ensued about these items and what can be done now by the LPA to address them.  Dr. Shockey added that Chapter 10-296, Sub. O of the Land Development Code addresses driveways already by referring to the County’s administrative code, which does not apply anymore since the County does not handle Town driveway permits.  He will provide the LPA a copy of this to assist them in these decisions.  Mr. Weimer surmised that the key item to address, based on this report would be driveway right-of-way issues and the surfaces used.  Members engaged in more discussion about right-of-ways and the regulations and definitions.  Mr. Van Duzer stated the LPA’s direction to him and Ms. Shamp to look into the driveway issues and Ms. Shamp requested a presentation by staff regarding the storm water issues, as well.  

At March 10th meeting, the committee will bring a basic report to review and take direction from there.  

B.  Communications with Town Council (M&P participation)
Mr. Weimer directed LPA  attention to his letter, in their packets, regarding having a member of the LPA participate in the M&P (management and planning) meetings.  Discussion ensued about when these meetings will take place.  Mr. Weimer asked for comments and suggestion about who will participate.  Mr. Mandel volunteered to attend the meetings for the LPA.  All members agreed. 

VIII. ADJOURN AS LPA-RECONVENE AS HPB 
MOTION:  Mr. Van Duzer moved to adjourn as the LPA and reconvene as the HPB; seconded by Ms. Barnes.

VOTE:   all in favor, 6-0.

Ms. Shamp took over the meeting and referred to the minutes, brochure data and other paperwork included in the packets from the HPB.  She gave updates about the brochure to be printed and the website.  She also turned the floor over to Ms. Kay to discuss A.J. Bassett’s suggestions as to locations where vistas would work.  She said that the signage would be the same as the Mound House; further discussion ensued about these signs and the costs, and Dr. Shockey gave an update about the plaque program.  Ms. Shamp reported that the HAC meetings will be on the 3rd Tuesday of the month, at 10:00 AM, and the next one is March 17th.

MOTION:  Mr. Van Duzer made a motion to adjourn as the HPB and reconvene as the LPA; seconded by Ms. Barnes.

VOTE:  vote carried 6-0 

The meeting was adjourned at 2:32 PM

IX. ADJOURN AS HPB-RECONVENE AS LPA 

X. LPA MEMBER ITEMS

Ms. Barnes asked for a discussion about the inflatable water slide at Time Square.  Dr. Shockey addressed this:  the LDC provides for certain activities to be allowed on a temporary basis, for up to 30 days (Chapter 34-Art. 4).  He referred the LPA to that regulation and explained it.  Some discussion took place about temporary permits and licenses for these special conditions.   Ms. Barnes was concerned about water usage and where the excess water goes, as well as the fairness of permitting.  

Ms. Barnes also asked about the status of taking over Bay Oakes and Mr. Weimer addressed this, since he is addressing it, with Jack Green and other staff and others.  He said that the group is looking after the Town’s interests.  

Ms. Kay had no items to discuss.

Mr. Mandel advised that the lobbyist has been given the task to lobby on behalf of the solar project.

Ms. Shamp commented that she failed to mention the beach re-nourishment project during her CIP report.  She said that funding for that may not be used for something other than concepts, etc. involving beach nourishment and protection.  She also referred to a magazine article she found applicable, as well.  

Mr. Weimer had no report.

XI. LPA ATTORNEY ITEMS
Ms. Dalton reported that the Board of County Commissioners meeting for next week has the Town’s proposed inter-local agreement for beach re-nourishment and a representative will attend for the Town.  She also requested that any LPA members who submit reports needing her or Dr. Shockey’s input, to please have them forwarded to them in advance, as early as possible.  Mr. Weimer suggested that be on the LPA action list.

XII. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR ITEMS
No report
XIII. LPA ACTION ITEM LIST
· Snug Harbor CPD-Mr. Weimer stated that this was continued

· 135 Gulfview-TBD

· 2008-45 LDC-Council moved this to a first hearing; Dr. Shockey will be the representative on this issue 3/23.

· Historic Plaque and Brochure-Dr. Shockey will find out the date these will be ready; Ms. Shamp will handle the presentation.  Mr. Weimer asked for the information that was in the last packet to be included here.

Future Work Activities
· Ordinance 09-01 for 3/10/09; review final documents.
· Commercial Rights-of-Way-3/10/09; Mr. Van Duzer/Ms. Shamp
· Storm Water-Move to 3/24/09
· Seasonal Parking-3/24/09
· Animal Control- 4/14/09
· Communications with Town Council-3/24/09
· Alcoholic Beverages-TBD
· Parcelization-Hearing TBD
· HPB Vista Items-3/24/09; Ms Kay
XIV. PUBLIC COMMENT

Mr. Melsek addressed the meeting again, regarding the rights-of-way.  He asked that there be consideration as to the size of lands being vacated by the Town and the size of right-of-ways and easements, including what impact it will make on the rest of the Town.  He also added that the Civic Association is hosting a meeting on March 10 to have Evelyn Wicks tell them about Bay Oaks.  He also announced that he is on an ad hoc committee, with others, to help people come into compliance with the trash law.  They will work on this problem.   

XV. MEETING ADJOURNED
Mr. Weimer asked for a motion to adjourn, moved by Mr. Mandel and seconded by Ms. Shamp; voted carried 6-0.  Meeting adjourned at 3:18 PM. 
Adopted _______________________ with/without changes.  Motion by ___________________



(DATE)

Vote:______________________  
________________________________________________






Dennis Weimer, LPA Chair

· End of document
LPA-February 24, 2009
Page 7 of 7

